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5 :

xas 75270
In the Matter of
Hiep Thai Arlington, Docket No. FIFRA-06-2024-0304

Respondent.

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

,Pré:liminarv Statement
The U.S. Environmental Protec vhcy, Region 6 (“EPA” or “Complainant”), and Hiep

Thai Arlington (“Respondent”) have agreet s;ettlement of this action before the filing of a

complaint, and thus this action is simultaneo st ommenced and concluded pursuant to Rules

22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) of the Consolidatéd of Practice Governing the Administrative

Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revo 'oﬁ'7Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40
C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2). ’
1. This proceeding is arf 'a ; "iétratiye action for the assessment of civil penalties
instituted pursuant to Section 14 of the. al'lnsecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act

(“FIFRA”), 7 U.S.C. § 1361.

2. This Consent Agreement and Final Order serves as notice that the EPA has

reason to believe that Respondent has vio;lé ction 12 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j.
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3. Complainant is the Direc';,t_v ¢ 'nyffvorcement and Compliance Assurance Division
of the EPA, Region 6, as duly delegated by the 'Admin,istrator of the EPA and the Regional

Administrator, EPA, Region 6.

4, Respondent is Hiep Thai Ar]i;dgﬁO‘n; a company conducting business in the state
of Texas.

Statutorv'éhd‘Regulatorv Background

5. Congress enacted FIFRAJ,U.S.C. 136 et. seq., in 1947 and amended it in 1972

and in 1996. The genera;l purpose of FIFR, T to provide the basis for regulation, sale,

distribution and use of pesticides in the Unite ,;.fStates.

6. Section 12(a)(L)(A) of FIFRA, 7 US.C. § 136j(a)(L)(A), states that it shall be
Unlawf;JI for ar)1y person to distribute or sel\!_?}ynyy,p}esti’cide that is not registered under Section 3
of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 1363, or whose "‘regisﬁt'réf@h has been cancelled or suspended.

7. Pursuant to the regulatior‘)‘g:’c"d‘fro C.F.ﬁ. § 152.15, in relevant part, no person may
distribute or sell any pesticide product tﬁ& is not registered under the Act, except as provided

in 40 C.F.R. §§ 152.20, 152.25, and 152‘1,'-‘35’0‘; A pesticide is any substance (or mixture of

substances) intended for a pesticidal purp ;é""',‘v-“i.e'., use for the purpose of preventing,

destroying, repelling, or mitigating anyﬁé , ‘Ude as a plant regulator, defoliant, or desiccant.
A substance is considered to be intended :f0~r§‘:»é"?ﬁé§ticida| purpose, and thus to be a pesticide
requiring registration, if the person who dus’eﬁbutes or sells the substance claims, states, or

implies (by labeling or otherwise) that the ubét’alnce (either by itself or in combination with any

other substance) can or should be used as?éé'pesticide.
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8. Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA’,‘ 7U .C. § 136/(a)(1), authorizes a civil penalty of not

more than $5,000 for each offense. The ‘D‘ebt;CoIiIection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C.

§ 3701, as amended, and the Federél Ci'\‘/‘ililsjéha‘ll‘ :s Inflation Adjustment Act Improvements Act
of 2015, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, and impIementf'r;vg??eg{alati’bns at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, increased these
statutory maximum penalties to $24,255 forVIolatlons that occur after November 2, 2015, and
for which pena“lties are assessed on orafter becémber 27, 2023.
| befinitions

9. Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 USC § 136(s), defines “person” to mean any individual,
partnership, associatior;, corporaticn, c“)‘l‘:;ﬁy?brganized group of persons whether incorporated
or not. b

10. Section 2(u) of FIFRA, 7 USC§ 136(u), defines “pesticide” to mean any

substance or mixture of substances intended for preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating

any pest.

11. Section 2(t) of FIFRA, 7 USC § 136(£), defines “pest” to mean (1) any insect,
rodent, nematode, fungus, weed, or (2).’ any other form of terrestrial or aquatic plant or animal
life or virus, bacteria, or other micro-o?’géhkhw (except viruses, bacteria, or other micro-

organism on or in living man or other living animals) which the Administrator declares to be a

pest under Section 25(c)(1).

12. Section 2(gg) of FIFRA, 7 U.’S:.C"§?i§§6(g'g), defines “to distribute or sell” to mean

to distribute, sell, offer for sale, hold for distri fion; hold for sale, hold for shipment, ship,

deliver for shipment, release for shipment, or receive and (having so received) deliver or offer

to deliver.
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13.  Section 2(p)(1) of F|FRA,"75U".VS‘.C. § 136(p)(1) defines “label” to mean the written,

printed, or graphic matter on, or attached to‘,‘,th‘e pesticide or device of any of its containers or

wrappers.
14. Section 2(p)(2) of FIFRA, 7 U‘.§1’¢.~‘,5§1\1136(p)(2) defines “labeling” to mean all labels
and all other written, printed, or graphic matter — (A) accompanying the pesticide or device at
any time; or (B) to which referencemis méde on the label orin literature accompanyiné\the
| pesticide or device.
15. The regulation at 40 C.F.R.‘ '*}15‘2.3 defines “active ingredient” as any substance (or
group of structurally sirf\wilar substa‘ncesfif?;s:ﬁi’e%éfifi‘ed by the Agency) that will prevent, destroy,
repel or mitigate any pest, or that functiOn's‘?é a‘?iant regulafor, desiccant, or defoliant within

the meaning of FIFRA sec. 2(a), except as prdvidéd in§174.3.

EPA Findings of Factand Conclusions of Law
16. Respondent is, and at all tlmes referred to herein was, a “person” as defined by
Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(s). -
17. Respondent owns ar:d dperates an international grocery store located at: 2430 E
Pioneer Pkwy, Arlington, TX 76010 (the-"ff‘fééi’iity").
18.  Pursuant to Section 9 ofFIFRA,7 U.S.C. § 136g, the EPA conducted an inspection
of the Facility on May 31, 2023, to detefrﬁihé'ﬁesfpbndent’s compliance with FIFRA and the

federal regulations promulgated thereundeF?L(\tHéi“'l'n‘spection”).

19. During the inspection, EPA dis o&fé‘red that Respondent distributed or sold, as

those-terms are defined by Section 2(gg)f‘é§f‘)‘ﬁlFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(gg), at the Facility two
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products that were unregistered pesticid‘eks‘;: (1) Moth Balls and (2) Crazy Tiger Mosquito Coil
(the “Products”). “

20. At the time of the lnspection},‘/ﬁ"ejs’;’aondent was distributing or selling the
Products identified above. :

21. On July 31, 2023, the EPA’ sent Respondent a Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Order.

EPA Findings of Violation

22.  The facts stated in the EPA Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law above are
herein incorporated.

23. Complaiﬁant hereby stateé arfd%nlléges that Respondent has violated FIFRA and
federal regulations promulgated thereundekf}ésfalklows:

ot
Moth Balls

24, The ingredients in the I\/’I’othr Eails product inclﬁde naphthalene. This ingredient ié
an “active ingredient” as defined by Sé'tfion 2(a) of‘FlFRA, 7 U.S.C. §136(a)and 40 C.F.R. §
152.3, because it is a substance that will prevent, destroy, repel, or mitigate a pest.

25, The Moth Balls product ha$ no significant commercially valuable use as
distri“;but‘ed or sold other than use for pest‘ic“idsl"p‘urpose.

26. - The Moth Balls productis a substance intended for a pesticidal purpose pursuant

to 40 C.F.R. § 152.15(b) because it consists of ‘contains one or more active ingredients and
has no significant commercially valuable u#&f’"’a‘é distributed or sold other than use for pesticidal

purpdse (by itself or in combination with any other substance), and required registration

pursuant to Section 3 of FIFRA, 7 U.S'.Cf» §136a.

Pa_ge 50f 14



In the Matter of Hiep Thai Arlington
Docket No. FIFRA-06-2024-0304

27.  Atthetime of the inspection,,'f’hé‘Moth Balls product was not registered
pursuant to Section 3 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136@." .

28. Respondent’s distribution ors:aleof the Moth Balls product, a pesticide that was
not registered under Section 3 of FIFRA; 7USC § 1364, is a violation of Section 12(a)(1)(A) of
FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(A). :

Crazy Tiger Mosquito Coil

29. At the time of the In;pecti'on, the label for Respondent’s product, Crazy Tiger
Mosquito Coil, stated that “Using .08% Mébétfluthrin it can eliminate mosquito and be safe for
human” and that it is ”%oxic to silkworms andfis‘ﬁj;" implying that the product could or should
be uéed as a pesticide. -

30. Because Respondent claimed‘fb}ylébeling that the Crazy Tiger Mosquito Coil
product can or should be used as a peystkiéﬁinrj}ev‘:;the'product was intended for a pesticidal purpose
and required registration pursuant to Sei:éion 3 of FIFRA, 7 US.C. § 136a. |

31. Additionally, the ingrédiéhfs inthe érazy Tiger Mosquito Coil product include
.08% metofluthrin. This ingredient is an v’?écﬁtiVé ingredient” as defined by Section 2(a) of FIFRA,
7 U.S.C. § 136(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 152.3, b’écauée-it is a substance that will prevent, destroy,
repel, or mitigate a pest. ; ‘

32. - The Crazy Tiger Mosquito Coil ’pr‘qduct has no significant commercially valuable
use as distributed or sold other than use ‘fof%ééﬁddal pu;pose.

33. The Crazy Tiger Mos’quitbcgi;ls”product is a substance intended for a pesticidal
purpbse pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 152.‘15{(b)ﬁ because it consists of’or contains one or more active

ingredients and has no significant commercially valuable use as distributed or sold other than
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use for pesticidal purpose (by itself or in colm‘bination with any other substance), and required
registration pursuant to Section 3 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136a.

34, At the time of the inspectic)lr\"i,ﬁ*t"he'Crazy Tiger Mosquito Coil product was not
registered pursuant to Section 3‘othIFRA',3 USC § 136a.

35. Respondent’s distribution or sale of Crazy Tiger Mosquito Coil, a pesticide that
was not registered under Section 3 of F:'IF‘RA, 7 U.S.C. § 1364, is a violation of Section 12(a)(1)(A)
of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(A).

CONSENT AGREEMENT

36. For the pﬁrpose of this proceeding, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2),

Respondent:

a. admits the jurisdictiOhafI,'?é;'i;iégationé set forth herein;

b. neither admits nor dé‘ni‘é’/;s the épecific factual allegations stated herein;

c. consents to the a‘sée?g;srhént of a civil penalty, as stated herein;

d. consents to the issu""a’rfice' of any s;pecified compliance or corrective action
order;

e. consentsto any condit'ionréf"spétified herein;

f. consents to any stated Pe'frﬁitézﬂction;

g. waives any right to contest the allegations set forth herein; and

h. waives its right to appe\ajlffj‘i"iye'final Ordér accompanying this Consent
Agreement. |

37, Respondent cbnsents to?f‘ché issuance of this (’:ons&‘ent Agreement and Final Order

and consent for the purposes of settlement to the payment of the civil penalty specified herein.
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38. Respondent and EPA agree to conciliate this matter without the necessity of a
formal hearing and to bear their respective'cbsts?and attorneys’ fees.

Penalty Payment

39. Respondent agrees that,‘ i'n’ settlement of the claims alleged herein, Respondent
shall pay a civil penalty of Five Thousar{a‘ Eight Hundred Dollars ($5,800.00), as set forth below.

40. Respondent shall pay the"p"‘enalty within thirty (30) days of receiving nc;tice of
the effective date of fhe Final Order. Such payment shall identify Réspondent by name and
docket number and shall be by certified or caShier’s check made payable to the “United States
Treasury” and sent to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center /& .

PO Box 979078 :

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000

or by alternate payment method described at http://www.epa.gov/financial/makepayment.
41. A copy of the check or other information confirming payment shall
simultaneously be sent to the following:

Lorena S. Vaughn

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6
1201 Elm Street, Suite 500 (O_RC) :

Dallas, Texas 75270-2102 '
vaughn.lorena@epa.gov; anidg»'

Blake Sieminski

Enforcement and Compliarice Assurance Division
Waste Enforcement Branch ‘
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6
1201 Elm Street, Suite 500 (ECDST)

Dallas, Texas 75270-2101+
sieminski.blake@epa.gov
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42, Respondent understands that its failure to timely pay any portion of the civil
penalty may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court to recover
the full remaining balance, along with penalties and accumulated interest. In such case, interest
shall begin to accrue on a civil or stipulé‘ée"d penalty from the date of delinquency until such civil
or stipulated penalty and any accru“ed‘i‘ﬁ"ﬁérest are paid in full. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(b)(1). Interest
WiII be assessed at a rate of the United States Treasury Tax and loan rates in accordance with 31
U.S.C. § 3717. Additionally, a charge will be assessed to cover the costs of debt collection
including processing and handling costs, and a non-payment penalty charge of six percent (6%)
per year compounded annually will be asse5jséd on any portion of the debt which remains
delinquent more than ninety (90) days aft‘e'?*?’ﬁayment is due. 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2).

Effect of Settlement and Reservation of Rights

43, Full bayment of the péhéif\‘/ proposed in this’Consent Agreement shall only
resolve Respondent’s liability for feder,‘glicfi\’/il penalties for the violations alleged
herein. Complainant reserves the right to‘take any enforcement action with respect to any
other violations of the FIFRA or any other applicable law.

44, The effect of settlement described in the immediately preceding paragraph is
conditioned upon the accuracy of Respond‘é'nts'; representations to the EPA, as memorialized in
paragraph d/irectly below.

45, Respondent certifies by t‘Hé‘gigning of this Consent Agreement that it is presenfly
in compliance with all requirements Of}yl"flf‘FRA and its implementing regulations.

46. Full payment of the pena‘lt\;‘proposed in this Consent Agreement shall not in any

case affect the right of the Agency or the' United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or
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other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law. This Consent Agreement

and ‘Final Order does not waive, ex'ginguish or otherwise affect Respondent’s obligation to

comply with all applicable provisions of the FIFRA and regulations promulgated thereunder.
47. Complainant reserves thé Eight to enforce the terms and conditions of this

Consent Agreement and Final Order.

Géﬁeral Provisions

48. By signing this Consent Agreement, the undersigned representative of
Respondent certifies that he or she is fully authorized to execute and enter into the terms and
conditions of this Consent Agreement and hés the legal capacity to bind the party it represents
to this Consent Agreement.

49, This Consent Agreement; shall not dispose of the proceeding without a final
order from the Regional Judicial Offi»cérf‘or'RegionaI Administrrator ratifying the terms of this
Consent Agreement. This Consent Agreement and Final Order shall be effective upon the filing
of the Final Order by the Regional Hear‘i'nlg‘{C!éfk forn EPA, Region 6. Unless otherwise stated, all
time periods stated herein shall be calculated in calendar days from such date.

50.  The penalty specified herein shall represent civil penalties assessed by EPA and
shall not‘be deductible for purposes of Federal, State and local taxes.

51. - This Consent Agreement and Final Order shall apply to and be binding upon
Respondent and Respondent’s agents, 1§{}J‘cCessors and/or ;ssigns. Responde;ﬂt shall ensure that
all contractors, employees, consultants, firms, or other persons or entities acting for
Respdndent with respect to matter‘{s‘ included herein comply with the terms of this Consent

Agreement and Final Order. gl
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52. The EPA and Respondent agrééttd the use of electronic signatures for this matter
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.6. The EPA and ‘IR“I‘eSpondent further agree to electronic service of this
Consent Agreement and Final Order by,erhail to the following:

To EPA: george.elizabefh.‘a@epa. gov

To Respondent: manilee70@yahoo.com
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RESPONDENT:
HIEP THAI ARLINGTON ~
-2l
Date: L'l Sr > 2
Signature
Many Lee .
Name

Srvree NMhnager
Title

COMPLAINANT: ‘
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Digitally signed by Cheryl T.

LR VWOV S S 06t Seager
Date: _April 12,2024 . Date: 2024.04.12 131540
Cheryl T. Seager
Director
.Enforcement

" "and Compliance Assurance Division
U.S. EPA, Region 6
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FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a), and the Consolidated Rules of
Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/
Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, the foregoing Consent Agreement
resolving this matter is hereby ratified and incorporated by reference into this Final Order.

Respondent is ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the Consent Agreement. In
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b), the effective date of the foregoing Consent Agreement
and this Final Order is the date on which this Final Order is fliledv with the Regional Hearing
Clerk.

This‘FinaI Order shall resolve only those causes of action alleged in the Consent
Agfeement. Nothing in this Final Order‘shall be construed to waive, extinguish, or otherwise
affect Respondents’ (or its officers, ageh"’tsv’,‘ servants, employees, successors, or assigns)
obligation to comply with all applicable fédér‘al', state, and local statutes and regulations,

including the regulations that were the subject of this action.

ITIS SO ORDERED.

THOMAS  Zasieucy

RUCKI i

Thomas Rucki ' R AR Date
Regional Judicial Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I'certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final
Order was filed with me, the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA, Region 6, 1201 EIm Street, Suite

500, Dallas, Texas 75270-2102, and that | Sent a true and correct copy on this day in the

following manner to the addresses:

Copy via Email to Complainant, EPA:
george.elizabeth.a@epa.gov k
Copy via Email tp Respondent:
manilee70@yahoo.com
Hiep Thai Food Store

2430 E Pioneer Pkwy
Arlington, TX 76010

LORENA Digitally signed by LORENA
: VAUGHN
VAUGHN Date: 2024.04.15 09:22:02 -05'00"

Regional Hearing Clerk
" U.S. EPA, Region 6
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